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Gllett &) ohnston

CROYDON, Surrey.
BELLS, CLOCKS, CARILLONS.

St. Peter’s Collegiate Church,

Wolverhampton,
fenop (33 owt.) of the New Ring of 12.

WULFRUN CHAMBERS, WOLVERHAMFTOS,
aB88RB. GILLETT »ud JOHNSTON, CROYDON, 4ifc Maroh,
luUuimii,

The re-oeiting of the peal of ken belli with the addition of tws

onei in the to~er of 8t. Peter'« Collegiate Church, Wolverhampion,
ranntly carried oat by you b»s proved moat suoceiafnl, aid fir»n
linaraf asttafaotion.

I am authorised by the Reotor and Wardena to lay how pl«ai»3
Ikiy ara with tha reiult. In the opinion of thoie well qualified to
Mge, wa have now, undoubtedly, one of the beat peala In the Kingdom.

Tours faithfully, F. T. BECK,
Architect, Dioeaiaa Surveyor

MODERN WORK.

1*1C

FRIDAY, JuLy 13th, 1917.

rKectatered at tha G.P.O. for "1
Luanaml islon as 7. newspaper.J

CONTROL OF THE BELFRY.

A go®d many ringers, we think, will be indebled to the
Rev. H. Drake" for his clear statement of the case with
regard to the management of belfries. It is generally
realised that the incumbent is the final court of appeal, as
it were, with regard to ringing of church bells; but probably
there are few who were aware of the reason by which
rectorB and vicars became vested in the power which they
have in the matter. As Mr. Drake shows, there is only
one ringer recognised by the law, and he is the incumbent,
and, as the ringers act as his deputies, it is obvious that it
lies exclusively with him to say “yea” or “ nay” where
ringing is concerned. The churchwardens, who are thought
by some to share the right with the incumbent to refuse or
grant the use of the bells, have a very limited, legal voice
in the matter. All that they appear to be concerned with
is the proper upkeep of the bells and belfry, and they can
only step in if the ringing is likely to be injurious to the
bells, the fittings, or the fabric of the church. Their con-
trol, therefore, over the actual ringing is only such as might
be exercised by way of refusal.

It is interesting to have this plain statement of the case,
because there are ringers who sometimes imagine that the
incumbent is exceeding his real powers in deciding, without
consulting the churchwardens, to refuse permission to ring.
From Mr. Drake’'s explanation of the position, it is quite
obvious that the incumbent has the matter in his own
hands. That being so, it is perfectly clear that a vicar or
rector, whatever he may be willing personally to do, can-
not assign the rights of future incumbents to some other
body—such as was made the condition of a proffered gift
to the Devon church of Harberton a few months ago, when
Sir Robert Harvey oflered two new tenor bells, and'an
endowment of 22,500 for the maintenance of the bells and
payment of the ringers, on condition that both the latter
should not be under the “ autocratic authority ” of the
vicar, but under the joint authority of the vicar, church-
wardens and chairman of the parochial feoffees.

Happily in the large majority of belfries the ringers are
on the best of terms with the incumbents, and a spirit of
the keenest loyalty exists. The result is that reasonable
requests for permission to ring are not refused' by the
clergy ; and, on the other haricl, as the Vicar of St.Matthew’s,
Upper Clapton, took the opportunity of pointing out last
week in regard to his own ringers, there is always great
willingness displayed by the ringers—even at inconveni-
ence—to fall in with the desires of the clergy when the
bells are required for special occasions. It is sometimes
said that ringers cannot be got to the belfry except for

Continued on pag 218.
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CHARLES CARR ™"

OPINION OF OUR
MODERN WORK.

Broomfield Vicarage,
elmsford

Dear Sirs,

| have great pleasure in stating
thatwe are perfectly satisfled with
the manner in which you have
carried out the work entrusted to
you of re-arranging and re-hanging
the Broomfield Church Bells.

We consider that the work re-
flects great credit upon your Ann,
and believe that your system of
banging the bella reduces the vibra-
tion of the steel frame supplied by
you to a minimum.

the CHUBCHWABDKNS unite
wish MB In this expression of
ojinlon. The BELIJUNOEBS aro
ai,0 unanimous In their praise of
t ie alterations efieoted by yon.

fours truly,
CBAS. KDMCNDS,
Vicar of Broomfield
Messrs C. CABB, LTD.
gmetbwiok.

Kindly ask ns to Inspect, Beport
-.ed Tender before deciding yoar
Sontract, —we may be able to
uilit yoo.

ESTABLISHED 1700.

SMETHWICK,
BIRMINGHAM

BELLS

FOR CHDRCHES;

SINGLY,
OR IN PBALS.

CHIMES FOR CLOCKS.

Peals Augmented,

Cracked Bells Recast.

FRAMES

In Best Seasoned Oak,

Steel or lron.

Chiming Machines.

Befit Workmanship and
Satisfaction OaaranUS'i

FITTINGS

or all kinds.

ARTISTIC WROUGHT
BRACKETS.

MILLBiBLI 1SO* BEtCKHt
Best Bell Bofks.
1IKPA.IB8 AND BIHANGIH
IK ALL BBANCHI3

BCLLiIUNOEKS sent to Inspcc
and roport on Belie and Tower

IRON

SEND FOB CATALOGUE.

JOHN NICOLL,

Ohuroh Bell Hope and Clock Rope
Manufacturer.

56, QDEEfS ROAD, PECKHAM, LONDON, SE.

fTwo minutes from Queen's Road Station, L.B. 4 S.C. Railway).

Late 1B Keeton's Road, Bermondsey,

Maker tn St. Paul's Cathedral, Westminster Abbey, Imperial lastltnw,

Canterbury, Edinburgh, St. Alban’o, Lincoln, Durham, Peterborough

Melbourne (Australia), Rochester, Dublin, St, Patrick'!, Maoohester
and Worcester Cathedrals eto,,etc.

July 13th, 191-/.

Continued from page 217.

their own pleasure. But that is an accusation which
applies in exceedingly few instances to-day. In the vast
majority of cases, the Sunday ringing is looked upon as a
serious duty, which has the first claim upon the ringer as
such. If he sometimes enjoys a peal for his own gratifi-
cation, it is not that he is concerned only withjhis own
pleasure, and, after all, a peal is only the highest form of
that practice which is essential for the proper discharge
of ringing on Sundays. The man who rings well in a peal
can be depended upon to ring well for service, and itis a
pleasing fact that incumbents, although invested with an
arbitrary power, are usually perfectly ready to grant the
wishes of the ringers when they are desirous of exercising
their art beyond the strict limits of Sunday duties. It
shows how happy are the relations between the *“ one
lawful ringer ” and his deputies.

EIGHT BELL PEAL
BRIERLEY HILL, STAFFORDSHIRE.
THE WORCESTERSHIRE AND DISTRICTS ASSOCIATION
On Saturday, July 7, 1917, in Three Hours and Three Minutes,
At the Church or St. Michael,

A PEAL OF BOB MAJOR, 5058 CHANCES ;
Tenor 14J cwt.
W illiam Short.............. Treble William A. Pugh.. 5
‘Charles W. Cooper L. 2 William Potter .. 6
Ralph Moors 3 Charles E. Perkins ... 7

Alfred Dodd 4 John Bass...

Composed by the late J. R. Pritchard.
Conducted by William Short.
‘ First peal of Major away from treble. Rung as a birthday com-
pliment to W. A. Pugh, who attained the age of Co the day previous,

and he has been a ringer at St. Thomas’ Church, Stourbridge, for
47 years.

HANDBELL PEALS.
LAVENHAM, SUFFOLK.
THE ELY DIOCESAN ASSOCIATION.
On Tuesday, June 26, 1917, in One Hour and Forty-seven Minu‘es,
In the Tower of the Parish Church,
A PEAL OF BOB MINOR, 5040 CHANCES;
Seven 720’s, each called differently.
Arthur Sywonds .. 1—2 ] Charles Poulson...
Stedmas H. Symonds 5—6
Conducted by S. H. Symonds.
Rung as a farewell to C. Poulson, who attained his iSth birthday
in May last, and has now been called to the Colours. He is d

present in Edinburgh, and is the fourth brother from this tower that
has joined up.

3—j

MILVERTON, SOMERSET.
THE BATH AND WELLS DIOCESAN ASSOCIATION.

On Saturday Evening, July 7, 1917, in Two Hours and Twenty-three
M inutes,

At La Stacio, Milverton,
A PEAL OF CRANDSIRE DOUBLES, 6040 CHANCES;
Being 42 extents.
Tapped on six handbells by
A. Tout.

A. C. Harvey and W. Knight.
First peal so rung for the Association.

Witnesses :
First attempt.

WEDDING AT HIGH WYCOMBE.

On Sunday Inst, for evening service, and also to mark tlie occasion Q
tho wedding, which took place on that day at tho Parjsh Church, be
tween Miss Dorothy Wilkins, the youngest, daughter of Mr. J. W. Wil-
kins, and Mr. Reginald Wilkins, his nephew, 1083 Stcdman Caters
rung by the following local ringsrn: F. llayes 1, R. Coles 2, G. Whitt
3, J. W. Wilkin# (composer and conductor) 4, P. Biggs 5, G. Twitcliend.
li. Markham 7, W. Home 8, J. Gransbury 9, A. lloing 10. The briik-
groom is an Australian- buf. is altached to the Royal Engineers

' France.
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ST. MARY-LE-TOWER. SOCIETY, IPSWICH.

JUBILEE CELEBRATION.

The 501U anniversary of the opening of the present peal of twelve
bells was celebrated on Saturday last with a successful gathering of
lingers,'who included Mr. Edwin Horrex, whose presence is ever wel-
come at his native town of Ipswich, and who is the only remaining mem-
ber of the opening band, Ilo was given a hearty reception, nnd ex-
pressed his pleasure at being the representative of tho Ancient Society
of College Youths 011 that occasion. Hinging commenced at 3.30 p.m.,
with two courses of Stcdman Cinques, followed by touches in various
methods, the visitors taking part including Messrs. Edwin llorrcx, J.
i. Sheppard, of St. Martin's Guild, Birmingham: W. J. Nevard, of
Great Bentley : Mr. Fred Day, and Mr. E. F. Poppy, of Eye; Mr.
Arthur Symonds, of Lavenham; Mr. Hawkins English of Coddenhnm;
Mr. W. Souter, of Stowmarket; Mr. F. Whatling, of Saxmundham; Mr.
R. H. Hayward, of Marlesford. One of the guests was Mr. Edwin C.
Sayer, Inspector of Weights and Measures for the Borough of Ipswich,
under"whom Mr. William Motts, the secretary of the Society, has served
n« assistant for a period of 22 years. Tea, under the restrictions of
the Food Controller, was admirably supplied‘by a well-known caterer.
—Mr. Edwin Horrox was voted to the chair, and a welcome having
been extended to tho visitors, Mr. Horrex once again expressed his
pleasure st being present. He could well remember, he said, the oc-
casion of the opening, and the early life of the St. Mary-lo-Tower So-
ciety 40 years ago. He had always been proud of the work the society
had done, and hoped it would continue lo maintain its good position.

Messrs. Sheppard. W. .T. Nevard and E. F. Poppy also expressed their
pleasure a] being present.

It was pointed out that that occasion was also the 105th anniversary
of lhe peal as a ring of ten, two trebles being added to the old octave
by John Naunton, and opened 011 July 7Lh. 1812. The society haS accom-
plished peals in seven methods 0Ol ten and twelve bells, and nine on
eight bells during these years.

It is interesting also to recall that about 140 peals for the Norwich
Diocesan Association have been rung al St. Mary-le-Tower Church, and
Dehenham is the only tower in Hie diocese where n greater number
have been accomplished. It was at St. Mary-le-Tower that the following
first peals in the metlinds were rung for lhe Association: Grandsirc
and Stcdman Caters, and Cinques: Plain Bob, Kent and Oxford Treble
Bob Royal and Maximus, Double Norwich Major, Royal and Maximus,
and Cambridge Royal and Maximus. The lasi named was the (W on
record in tile method.

MIDLAND COUNTIES' ASSOCIATION.
BISHOP OF PETERBOROUGH AS PATRON.

A quarterly meeting of the Midland Counties Association was held at
Beeslon 011 Saturday afternoon. June 30lh, the bells being available for
ringing from three until eight o'clock, nn<l amongst those present were
representatives from Burton-on-Trent, Cotgrave, Derby, Duffield. T,n,.
on Nottingham, Orston. Radclifife-on-Trent, and Sandiacre. in sddiHor
o llie local ringers. Tea was served in the church schoolroom at five
o cluck, and was a credit to all who had taken part in the arrangiii”
nnd preparing of the meal. Thirty-three ringers and friends sat down,
and immediately after ten the president, Mr. J. W. Taylor, took the
eimr. supported by the Rev. Cole-Shcanc (Vicar), the Rev. Gooch am’

0 v cllira”es Beeston), Mr. Il. A. Price (churchwarden),
and others, and the usual routine business was carried through. Si\-
now members were elected.

Hie Preside.it briefly addressed the meeting, alluding to the recent
death of Mr. Harry Wakley, of Burton-on-Trent, nnd deploring the loss
of one of the original members of the Association.

He forcibly brought, to notice the necessity of increasing the interest
m ihe Association (especially amoncst the clergy nml churchwardens)
?"d 1"p members to do all they could to obtain honorary mem-
bers. The President said he was pleased to know that the Bishon
1" erhorough would become a palron of the Association and read Hi
following letter from him which had been sent on through the vice-
president (Canon F. E. Niigee, who was unfortunately unable to be
nresenl,): My dear Ciinon,—I shall be alad to be a patron of the Mid-
land Counties Association of Change Ringers in accordance with the
Kind invitation of their secretary. | am sure these Associations are
worthy of encouragement and should be kept in touch with the church
as tar” as possib

Thanks to the Vicar of Beeslon for the use of the hells nnd school-
room were unanimously accorded and acknowledged. Thanks were also
given to the local members for making the excellent arrangements for
the meeting, and to lhe President for his attendance.

After the meeting a return was made to the tower, where further
ringing in various methods was done, and a helping hand lent to several
beginners in the art.

NOTTINGHAM.—At St. Peter’'s Church, on May 13th, for morning
service, 518 Grandsiro Triples: Miss M. Woolley 1, J. Pagett (Derby),
conductor, 2, E. Hughes 3, T. H. Kirkhy 4. W. J. Sevier 5 .T. Barrett

Mr. If. R. Coljbin 7. W, Flawfars 8,
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SOCIETY FORARCHDEACONRY OF STAFFORD.

The annual meeting was held under favourable weather conditions al
Wolverhampton, on Saturday week. A shfcrt service was' held in the
Leveson Chapel of St. Peter’'s Collegiate Church, at which the Rev
Preb. Penny (Rector) delivered an inspiring address to his many
hearers. Tea was served at the * Seven Stars ” Hotel, at which more
than 50 were present, and was much enjoyed by all. The Rev. T. W.
Wilkes, M.A. (at one time clerical secretary and treasurer of the so-
ciety), presided at tho business meeting which followed and later was
re-elected an honorary member.

The report and balance sheet, were presented by the clerical secretary,
and passed, both being considered very satisfactory. The balance in
hand showed an increase of £2 13s. 2d. over last year’s.

The report, was as follows: “ Our annual meeting takes place once
more under the cloud of war. During the past 3ear many more of our
members have joined the forces, and the majority of those left at
home are working such long hours that little time is left them for the
practice of the noble art. The last annual meeting was fairly well
attended, especially so when it is remembered that Tamworth is situ-
ated some considerable distance from the ringing centre of the Arch-
deaconry and the existing railway fares being high, many familiar faces
at these gatherings were conspicuous by their absence. However, tho
local band mustered well, together with many from the surrounding
district. Six members of St. Martin's (Birmingham) Guild put in an
appearance, and delighted those who were fortunate enough to hear
them with a capitally struck touch of Stedman Cinques on the hand-
bells. The Hon. the Rev. Maurice Peel delivered an inspiring address,
and gave the members a warm welcome. At a later date the reverend
gentleman rejoined H.M. Forces as Chaplain, and, alas! the sad news
of his recent death on the battlefield lias come as a shock to all. The
quarterly meetings held at Coseley, Rushall and Wednesbury were on
the whole moderately well attended. At the last-named place it was
arranged to hold combined practices fortnightly, and the following
towers have been visited: St. Peter’'s, Wolverhampton; Coseley: Christ
Church, West Bromwich; and Tipton. Much good must result from
such meetings, as at present there appears to be a waning of interest
in the art now that weekly practices of the respective bands are post-
poned. As might be expected, the number of peals rung is small,
though several attempts were made which came to an untimely end.
The successes are as follows: Grandsire Triples, 1; Stedman Triples, 2.
During the year seven new members joined the society, which brings
the total membership to 377.*"

The following were elected as officers: Treasurer, Rev. C. H. Barker,
L.Th.; secretaries. Rev. C. H. Barker and H. Knight ; Ringing Master.
Mr. W. Fisher; auditors, Messrs. E. F. Mitchell and B. Gough; Central
Council Representatives, Messrs. W. Fisher and H. Knight; honorary
committee, Rev. W. Solly, Rev. T. W. Wilkes, and Mr. W. W. Worth-
ington. -

The places chosen for meetings are Brierley Hill (September), Bilston
(January), Penn (April), and Penkridge (June), for the annual gatlier-
i *
"Mt was agreed to continue tho combined practices, which are to be
held at Walsall (10 bells), July 14tli; Pattingham (8), August 1lfch:
Penn (8), August 25th: and Trysull (6), September 8th: all at 4 p.m.

It was resolved that the sum of one guinea should be handed over
to the “ Samuel Spittle Memorial Fund,” and Mrs. Jas. George advo-
cated the better support of “ The Ringing World.M

A vote of thanks was accorded the chairman, who expressed his plea-
sure at being fit and well enough to bo present. The bells were made
use of during the afternoon, as well as after the meeting.

BOUGHTON RINGER KILLED IN ACTION.

News has been received that Pte. R. Earl, of Boughton, who was
serving in the Warwickshire Regiment, has met his death in France,
and for his wife and five young children who are left *he deepest sym-
pathy is felt. Pte. Earl, before joining up, worked for Mr. Kimbell,
churchwarden and follow chorister for many years. It is as a ringer
that, the members of tho Gentral Northants Association will miss him
most, but in the parish of Boughton the choir, as well as the ringers,
have suffered a heavy loss, for Pte. Earl was possessed of a fine bass
voice.

A memorial service was held at the Parish Church on Sunday even-
ing, June 24tli, when the Rector spoke feelingly of the many good works
of Mr. Earl in his native village, and especially of his services to tlie
Church. Aher the service a 720 Grandsire Doubles was rung, muffled,
on*the lovely light ring of bells: H. Wright 1, O. Dickens 2, C. RIngrove
3, G. Parker 4, IT. Clarke (conductor) 5.

OXFORD DIOCESAN GUILD.

The 40th anniversary of the formation of an Association of Ringers
(which gave the title to the East Berks and South Bucks branch of the
and friends, on Saturday, July 14th By kind invitation of the Presi-
Guild in 1881) will be celebrated by a special fficeting of the committee
dent, the Rev. Canon Drummond, M.A;, tea will be provided at Boyne
Hill Schools at 5.30 p.m.; business meeting to follow. The Vicar of
Burnham will be.pleased to allow visitors and members the use of St.
Peter’'g Bells. B'.irnham, from 3 to 5 oVlirck ihe same afternoon.
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MEARS &
STAINBANK,

Bellfounders & Bellhangers,

SSr

32 & 34, Whitechapel Road,
LONDON, E.

Tenor Bell, 25% ewt., of the new
of Ten at St. Peter'>, Brighton.

ring

ESTIMATES SUBMITTED

For Rehanging, Retuning and Recasting.

Musical Handbells In sets, Bell Ropes, &c.

At the Handbell_Cottfest held annually in Manchester the
First Prize jor the last 16 years has been awarded to bands

usint; our bells, and on fourteen of those occasions they have gained
the Second Prize also.

THE RINGING WORLD.

July 13th, 1917.

THE MANAGEMENT OF BELFRIES.
BY THE REV. H. DRAKE.

There lia« often been much discussion on this mailer, but 1 have
Ucver seen the real reason for Ihc present stato of aflairs explained.
By Canon Law (which by tho Submission Act is now Law of the Land)
there is only ono lawful ringer for a church, au<l he is the incumbent.
That ho is always supposed lo act by deputy does not, alter this fact;
and, besides being law, it is also common sense; fot*, after all, the boll*
arc always put into the tower to help in thc arrangement of the sem
vices; and as long as one person has the unchallenged right to thc
arrangement of the services, he must also have the unchallenged right
to the arrangementg for the Mounding of the bells.

Complications have, however, arisen on both sides. Ringers should
be always keen Churchmen: if they wore, no trouble would arise.  Bii(
there are men who get paid for ringing, and this sometimes upseU
matters; "and there nr© others who only ring because it in a hobby, and
care little or nothing about the Chureh otherwise. These 111 are
mually most excellent men, and very desirable ringers*

O* the other side one mu>( remember that change ringing tower*
are, ribid probably always will be, in a very small minority. Anil &
most of la* cKange ringing parsons gei appointed to churches with only
fine ball, and probably no tower, it follows that practically all the
incumbents of parishes where there are change ringers, know nothin?
about these matters, are too old to learn, and perhaps even consider
hells and ringers a nuisance. | am only surprised bhafc as a rule mat*
for* settle down as well as they do. But it would always be a kelp, if
both parson and ringers remembered that they act as his deputy when
ringing for service, and afc other times that they are only practising
for service ringing.

While being far from thinking that church towers are not. the righl
place for change ringing, one might point out, that men who are
ringers first, and Churchmen afterwards (if at all), should try to get
more rings of bells huug in town halls, as there they would be free
from these difficulties. | fear, however, that this is decidedly 1
“ counsel of perfection."

As to the Churchwardens, they are trustees of the property of the
Churek, and, as such, the bells and their fittings belong to them. But
their duty only extends to seeing that they are kept in «?00d condition
for assisting at the services in the Church. They hare no right to nnv
voice in tho matter of the actual ringing, so long as it is not injurious
to the bolls, their fittings, or the fabric of the Church.

rcciry ASSOCIATION
CASTLE HEDINGHAM REVISITED AFTER 20 YEARS.

The quarterly meeting of the North Essex District of the Essex A
sociation was held at Castle Hedinghsm on Saturday afternoon in
beautiful weather, and there was a very gcod attendance. The tower*
represented were Braintree, Booking, St. Saviour’s, 'Walthamstow: Steb-
bing, Dunmow, Thetford, Earls Colne, Castle Hedingham, Sible Heilins-
kam, Lavenham, Felstead, Rayne, Stisted and Great Yeldham, between
40 and 50 members being present. It is an interesting fact that the
Association has not paid a visit to Castle Hedingham for a period of
20 years, and on Saturday the members were cordially welcomed ly
the Vicar, the Right Rev. Bishop Powell. .

111 the afternoon a service was held in the Parish Church, which wes
conducted by the Vicar, the lesson being read by the Rev. H. T. \V.
Eyre, of Great Tothum, general secretary of the Association. A special
form of service was used, and special hymns sung, the surpiiced choir
being present, and Mr. A. Turner at the organ. Ail appropriate ad
dress was given by Bishop Powell, who dwelt upon the importance of
the message of the bells.

During the afternoon anil evening various touches were rung oil the
bells, including Double Norwich, Kent Treble Bob, Grandsire, Oxford,
and New London. Thc bells at Sible Hedingham Church were also
open, and some of lhc ringers availed themselves of the opportunity to
visit the church.

Toa was held at Hie Bell Hotel, Castle Hedingham. Bishop Powell
preside*!, and was supported by the Rev. H. T. W. Eyre,, Mr. C. H
Howard, J.P., of Braintree. Master of the Association; Mr. Il. B
Baines, of Sible Hedingham; Mr. B. Redgcwell, of Rayne, thc district
secretary, and others.

After the tea. the usual business meeting was held, and sevoral new
members were elected from the parish of Felstead. It was also de
cided to hold tlie next meeting of the Association at Felstead.

The Rev. Il. T. W. Eyre proposed a hearty vote of thanks to the
Vicar for inviting them to Castle Hedingham, remarking that conijnj.
to that village was something to be thankful for, as it had opened a
new avenue. He should also like to thank him for his splendid address
which had made them look upon bell ringing in a new light.

This was seconded Dy Mr. Howard, who remarked that the Hedjng*
hams were now looked upon as a stronghold for ringing in the district.
He appreciated the Bishop’s address, and expressed the opinion that
there was scarcely a Sunday when thc message of the bells did not g*
out to somebody who appreciated it.—The motion having been carried
unanimously, the Vicar assured them ho was gaatcful to the Association
for earning to Castle Hedingham.
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THE DEATH OF C.-S.-M. WAKLEY.

ONE OF DUNIUTON-ON-TRENT'S CELEBRATED BAND.

As briefly announced ii] (Air last issue, Company-Sorgt.-Major llairy
Wakley, of Burton-on-Trent, passed away at Colchester Hospital on
June 9th, and with his death another gap lias been made in the ranks
of tlio band that made Burton-on-Trent, a place of celebrity in the
ringing world between 30 and 40 years ago. The deceased was an accom-
pKshad ringer, and was one of the original members of the Midland
Counties Association. 111 addition to his enthusiastic interest in ring-
ing, he became, in 1881, a Volunteer, joining the corps that afterwards
became the 6Ul Battalion North Staffordshire Regiment, Territorial
force. In this he hold the rank of sergeant for many years, and when
the war broke o«t 110 was mobilised with the regiment, and was with
tho second line of that batialion up to March, 1916, when he was trans-
ferred as companv-sorgoanl-major to a Provisional Battalion, and,
afkef doing duty wtHt an Aircraft Observation Company for some time,
rejoined the Provisional Battalion, now the 21st Nolt6 and Derbyshire
Regiment, early iu tie present war. He was only serioiwh- ill five days,
being admitted to rite Colchester General Hospital *11 Saturday, June
9th, operated upon for gastric ulcer on the 101h, and died in lhe after-
noon of Ilie 14tli.

The Late C.-S.-M. H. W akley.

The bmerul took place al Colchester 011 Monday, June 18th, the gun-
cirriage being precede*) by the band of the Norfolk Hogiment stationed
there. The bearers were five opmpauy-sergeant-majors and his own
senior sergeant, the guard of honour consisting of a company of the
Norfolk*, with a party from the Nott* and Derby Regiment under uu
officer. There was also the usual firing party, and lhe bugles sounded
tins Last Post at the conclusion of the service. The only mourners able
to bo present \yere his widow, Miss Wakley, of Tonbridge (sister), and
Lance-Corporal Albert P. Wakloy (nephew).

With reference to his ringing career. Mr. Wakloy joined the St. Paul's
Company, at Burtou-oii-Trent, in 1881, and rang llie tenor lo his first
peal of Grandsire Triples on April 27lh, 1882, this being Holt's Original,
conducted by Joseph Griffin. His first peal with a bob bell was also
Grandsiro Triples, rung on Thursday, November 9th, 1882, this being
“ I'eiiHiiig’s One-Part,”" then rung for the second time, with the same,
conductor as before. These two peals with the following, viz.: Novem-
ber 18th,’ 1882—7,200 Double Norwich Court Bob Maior, rung at
Beeston, Notts (the longest length in the method at that time, in which
the late Jaspar W. Snowdon took pari, conducted by the late William
'Vakley); December 8th, 1882—5,024 Kent Treble Bob Major; December
Jth, 1882—5,040 Grandsire Triples at Colcorton, Leicestershire;
March 28th, 1883—5.024 Kent Treble Bob Major; April 7th, 1885—5,088
Ditto; June 21fii, 1883—5,040 Grandsire Triples, were nil rune at tlie
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first attempt. It waa a unique performance for a young ringer to
score hfe first eight peals in three methods without a break, so that it
began to be a joke amongst the members of the band, wheH arrange-
ments were being made for a peal attempt, for one or other to aay:
“ Oh, let Harry be in and you are sure to get it.”

The deceased also took pant in another fine achievement by ringing
in four out of five peals accomplished within eight day® (the last fsur
being rung half-muffled on the occasion of the death of Michael Thomas
Hass, founder of St. Paul's and St. Margaret’s Churches, Burfcon-upon-
Trent), viz.: April 28th, 1864; Stedamn Triples, conducted by the Is\We
Charles H. Hattersley; April 30th, 1884: Grandsire Triples; May 2nd,
1884: 5,056 Double Norwich Court Bob Major; May 3rd, 1884: 5,068
Kent Treble Bob Major; May 5th, 1884: 5,120 Superlative Surprise
Major, all conducted by his late brother William Wakley.

The latter peal was the first in the method by all, and the first re-
corded in the “ Bell News.” Mr. Bass died on Yiwclay, April 29th,
and was buried on Monday, May 5tt, at Raugemore, near Burton-upon-
Trent, an<] the peal of Superlative was rung in tbe moraing to enabU
tbo ringers to attend the funeral. With reference to these peals, th#
" Bell News ” of May 10fh, 1884, said: “ The remarkable feats of the
Burton-upon-Trent gentloine* wfll establish them as the most akilful
company of eight-bell ringers in existence at the present time.”

Mr. Wakley's 50t*li peal was completed ou Saturday. October 24th
1885, being a peal of 5,056 Double Norwich Court Bob Major, composed
and conducted by his friend and colleague, John Jaggar.

As a conductor it was not* until some years later that he took up fho
duty, but the band always had every confidence in his abilities, and he
was very successful.

Mr. Wakley's 100th peal was the second of two peals rung on April
3rd. 1888, a peal of Duffield Royal, at All Saints’, Di>ftield, composed
and conducted by the late Sir Arthur Heywood. It was frhe second ponl
that had been rung iu the method. Among the deceased's interesting
performances were 6,720 Superlative, the longest length in the method
achieved up to that time, on Jamrarv 24th, 1885: three peals of Super-
lative rung on December 28th, 29th and 30th in the same year—a note-
worthy feat for those davs—and in which Joseph Field. Charles Houns-
low and James W. Washbrook. took part; the first peal of New Cum-
berland Surprise Major ever rung, and runsr moreover at the first at-
tempt; three peals of Cambridge Surprise Maior in three consecutive
attempts within n fortnight, in February, 1887; the first peal of Cam-
bridge in the “ Burton * variation (now known as New Cambridge):
a peal of London Surprise Maior on September 1st, 1887, ihe. fourth
ever rung, and the ftrst bv all the band. Other interestiag incidents in
his ringing career could be aoted did space permit, but sufficient has
been said to show that Harry Wakley was among the pioneers of ring-
ing in Surprise Methods, and that to the enterprise of the Burton men
was due to no small exteat tlie foundation of u Surprise ” ringing that
was laid in the eighties, and upon which so great an advance was built
up in the years that followed.

At- this period the most famous ringers of the day visited Burton,
and consequently Mr. Wakley met an<l rang with a creat number of
the celebrities, many of whoai have now gone to their lest rest. Among
these may be numbered the late Rev. F. E. Robinson, Sir Arthur Hev-
wood, Jaspar Snowdon, Henry Dains. Nathan Pitstow, Harrv Bastable.
Joseph Field, Charles Hounslow, IT. D. Betteridge, Rowland Cartwright,
and others, to say nothing of many famous ringers who are happily still
with us.

He joined the Midland Counties Association at its inauguration when
known as the Derby an<} District Association, and rang in the “ Original
Members’ " peal of Stedmon Triples on Monday, April 1st, 1907, at
St. Andrew’s, Derby, conducted by Joseph Griffin, in celebration of
the twenty-fifth anniversary of the Association, and also filled the posi-
tion of local honorary secretary of the Burton-upon-Trent district from
1899 to 1902, and 1911 to 1914.

In addition to his first peal 235 peals in various methods on eight bells
were rung under the auspices ef this society.

On Sunday, June 17th. for Divine service, the bells of St. Paul's
Church, Burion-upon-Trent, were rang half-muffled as a token of love
an<J respect to a loyal comrade and fellow church worker.

The association of C.-S.-M. Wakley with St. Paul's, Burton-on-Trent,
recalls the great advance in the art of ringing that was made in the
eighties by that company, and we hope next week to give some details
of those early performances.

YARMOUTH RINGERS' OUTING.

Four Great Yarmouth ringers paid a visit to Theberten oti June 30th,
and also made an excursion to Saxmuudham, where the following rang
720 Bob Minor: C. Harding 1, F. Watling (conductor) 2 J. Avis 3, D.
Hayward 4, Il. Wright 5 F. Pestall 6. Tlie visitors from Yarmouth
were tho ringers of 1, 4, 5 and 6, and they wish to thank Mr. Watling
for entertaining them to tea, arranging for a pull, and also the trap to
take them to Theberton from Saxmundham.

TODMORDEN. LANCASHIRE*—On July Nt. f.r evening serviec, a
quarter-peal of Grandsire Triples: L. llolroyd 1, J. E. Rowland 2, J.
Richards 3. H. Barker 4, E. Cheotham 5, H. Daufnj>ort 6, W. Crahtp”e
(conductor) 7, S. Hartley 8. N
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NOTICES.

The Editorial
which all communications
Road, W oking.

ANCIENT SOCIETY OF COLLEGE YOUTHS—
Established 1637.— Meetings will be held at St. Michael's,
Cornhill, on every first Sunday in the month at6 p.m.; and
at the Coffee Pot, Warwick Lane, E.C., on July 17th
and 31st, for general business, also on the 26th for
handbell practice, at 8 p.m.—W.illiam T. Cockerill, Hon.
Sec., 32, Edgeley Road, Clapham, S.W .4.

ESSEX ASSOCIATION.—The summer meeting of the
S.E. Division will be held at Great Waltham on Saturday,
July r4th. Bells available, 3.30. Service, 5.30. Tea, V-
pjr h-ad, at the Six Bells, at 6 p.m., followed by meeting.
—F. W. Edwards, Clifton Villas, Writtle.

KENT COUNTY ASSOCIATION.— Maidstone Dis-
trict.—The quarterly meeting will be held at Barming on
Sat., July 14th. Bells available at 3 p.m. Short service
at 5 p.m.; tea provided by churchwardens at 545. All
ringers welcome.— Stephen Hayzelden, District Secretary,
Lower Street, East Farley.

BATH AND WELLS DIOCESAN ASSOCIATION.
—The annual meeting will be held at Yeovil on Saturday,

O ffice of “ The Ringing W orlb,” to
should be sent, is g, Com-

mercial

July 14th. Service at 3.30. Meeting in St. John's School
at 4 p.m. Tea at Maynard’'s Restaurant at 5 p.m. Bells
available from 1 p.m.—E. E. Burgess, Hon. Sec., 62,

Greenwey Avenus, Taunton.

GLOUCESTER & BRISTOL ASSOCIATION—
North Forest Branch.—The next quarterly meeting of the
above branch will ba held at Churcham on Saturday the
14th July. Bells <6) available from 3p.m. Tea at5 p.m.
All bell ringers welcome.—Joseph Williams, Hon. Sec.,
Glen Holm, Newent, Glos.

SOCIETY OF ROYAL CUMBERLAND YOUTHS.
— The next quarterly meeting will be held at Southgate on
Saturday, July 14. Bells available at 4 o’clock. Tea will
be arranged if sufficient members let me know by July
10th.—J. Parker, Hon. Sec. pro tem., 97, Edenbridge Road,
Bush Hill Park, Enfield.

WARWICKSHIRE GUILD. — A special general
meeting will be held at Berkswell on Saturday, July 21st.
Bells available all afternoon and evening. Committee
meeting at 4.15. Service at 4.45. It is important that |
should be notified by those intending to be present not
later than July 15th. Business meeting after tea.—Joseph
H. White, Hon. Secretary, 59, George Eliot Road,
Coventry.

LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION.— Rochdale Branch—
The next meeting will be held at Todmorden Unitarian
011 Saturday, July 21st. Bells ready at, 3 o’clojk till dusk.
Meeting at six.—T. K. Driver, Middleton.

OXFORD DIOCESAN GUILD.—The annual busi-
ness meeting will be held at the King’'s Road Institute,
King's Road, Reading, on Saturday, July 21st, at 3 p.m.—
A. E. Reeves, Lieut.,, R.D.C., Guild Secretary, 16,
Mansfield Road, Reading.

LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION.—Bolton Branch—
The next meeting will be held at Deane Parish Church on
Saturday, July 21st, 1917. Bells ready at 4. Meeting at 7.
—Thomas B. Worsley, Branch Sec., 19, Parkfield Road,
Bolton.
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LONDON COUNTY ASSOCIATION (late St. James'
Society, established 1824).—Owing to unforeseen circum-
stances, the next meeting will be held at All Saints
Edmonton, on Saturday, July 21st (not 14th as previously
stated). Ringing from 4 p.m., business meeting to follow.
All ringers welcome.—T. Walker, Hon. Sec.

CENTRAL NORTHANTS ASSOCIATION.-
Thrapston District.—The next quarterly meeting will be
held at Thrapston on Saturday, July 21st. Bells (8) avail-
able from 3 p.m. Service at 5 p.m. ; meeting to follow in
Church Room. Election of officers.— F. Stubbs, Dis. Sec.,
3, Bridge Street, Raunds.

MIDDLESEX COUNTY ASSOCIATION AND
LONDON DIOCESAN GUILD (North and East Dis-
trict).— A meeting will be held at St. Mary’s, Walthamstow,
on Saturday, July 2rst. Ringing from 3.30 p.m. Tea,6p.m.
(at moderate price to all who inform me by Wednesday,
July 18th). followed by business meeting. All ringers wel-
come.—W. H. Oram, Hon. Sec. pro tern, 25, Crowfi St,
Harrow.

ROMNEY MARSH GUILD.—A meeting of the above
will be held at Ashford, by kind permission of the Vicar
(Rev. E. K. Sopwith), on Saturday, July 21lst. Bells
mavailable at 3 o’clock. All ringers will receive a hearty
welcome, and it is hoped that a good number will avail
themselves of this opportunity of meeting to ring in such a
central position. If those requiring tea will kindly notify
me not later than Wednesday, July 13th, | shall be pleased
to make the necessary arrangements.— H. Balcomb, Hon.
Secretary, The Priory, Appledore, Ashford, Kent.

SUSSEX ASSOCIATION (Eastern Division).—The
next meeting will be held at Mayfield on Saturday, July
2ist. Ringing from 2 p.m. Tea at 5 o’clock. Members
wishing to be present at tea must let me know not later
than Tuesday, 17th.—Geo. H. Howse, Div. Secretary,
Kenilworth, Latimer Road, Eastbourne.

MIDLAND COUNTIES ASSOCIATION.— Notting-
ham District.—There will be ringing at Holy Trinity
Church, Lenton, on Saturday afternoon, July 21st, from 3
to 6 o’clock. Important business meeting afterwards for
the election of district officers.—W. E. White, Hon. Sec.

NORTH NOTTS ASSOCIATION.—The next quar-
terly meeting will be held at Shireoaks on Saturday, Juy
2ist. Bells (6) available from 2 to 9 p.m.—H. Haigh,
Hon. Sec., 103, Gateford Road, Worksop.

KENT COUNTY ASSOCIATION.—Lewisham Dis-
trict.—The next meeting will be held at Dartford, by kd
permission of the Rev. Leonard Savill (Vicar), on Saturday,
July 28th. Bells»available at 2.30 p.m. Service ad
address at 4.30 p.m. Business meeting to follow in tre
Church Hall, Lowfield Street. Half rail fares allowed.-
T. Groombridge, Hon. Dist. Sec., 35 Albany Road,
Chislehurst.

ST. MARTIN'S GUILD FOR THE DIOCESE COF
BIRMINGHAM. Established 1755.—Quarterly Meetin;
will be held on Saturday, July 28th, at St. Martin's. Belis
(12) available from 3.30 to 5 o’clock. Canon Willink hes
very Kindly invited members to tea at the Rectory, 9r
Harry’s Road, and tea will be provided at 5.30 for those
who send in their names, not later than the 25th inst., ©
A. Paddon Smith, Hon. Sec., 11, Albert Road, Hands
worth, Birmingham.
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CHESTER DIOCESAN GUILD. — The annual
festi val will be held at St. Mary's, Stockport, on Saturday,
July 28th. Service at 3.45. Preacher: The Rev. F. C.
L. Hamilton, Rector of Northenden. Other particulars
by circular.—Rev. A. T. Beeston, Hon. Sec., New Mills.

LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION. Blackburn
Branch.—The next branch meeting will be held at the
Burnley Parish Church on Saturday, July 28th, 1917.
Bells ready at 3 o'clock. Meeting, 6.30 p.m.—J. Watson,
Branch Sec.

PETERBOROUGH AND DISTRICT ASSOCIA-
TION.—The annual meeting will be held at Peterborough
on Monday, August 6th. Service at St. John's Church
W4 o'clock ; business meeting after. St. John's, St. Mary'’s
and Woodston’s bells will be avaHable. No arrangements
for tea, but all ringers welcome.—John J. Jutson, Hon.
Sec., St. Mary’s School House, Peterborough.

PEAL BOOKS.—Price 3s., post free 3/6.
ten in at 3d. per page.
ciation official peal
West Ewell, Epsom.

Peals writ-
Prices for entering peals in Asso-
books upon application.—]. Beams,

HOLIDAY APARTMENTS.

RINGERS and visitors to Matlock will find every com-
fort and convenience at Mr*. H. Paulson’*, BeecS llou«e.

MEMORIAL TABLET TO THE LATE
MR. SAMUEL SPITTLE.
Subscriptions to the above should be forwarded at once
to the Ringing Master, Mr. Harry Mason, Stourdell, Old
Hill, or to the Hon. Sec., Herbert Sheppard, 113, Himley
Road, Dudley.

£ s d
Subscriptions already acknowledged .. 518 o
Society for the Archdeaconry of Stafford 1 1 o0
Mr. J. Smith, Tipton ...02686
Mr. W. Newell (St. Laurence’s, Reading)... 0 2 6

Correction.—St. Martin's Sunday ringers should be
one guinea, not £1 as reported, and Mr. Edgar Marlow,
Wood Green, Wednesbury, 1/6, not 1/- as stated. This
malios a total up to date of £7 5s. 6d.

LADY CHURCHWARDEN RAISES HANDBELL FUND.

A ringing meeting for tho purpose of assisting the local ringers took
place at Llaugonoyd, Glamorganshire, Ol Saturday last, ringers attend-
ing from Aberavon, Bridgend, an<l Newport. It will be remembered
llial a few mouths ago a similar meeting was held, the result of which
wm that the locals became anxious to become change ringers, and
joined the Llandaff Association. Progress is being made under the
tuition of Mr. Pitman, of Aberavon. On the first, occasion it was sug-
gested that a set of handbells should bo obtained for the purpose of
starling change ringing. The ringers approached their esteemed lady
churchwarden, Miss Thomas, and she came to their assistance admir-
ably by collecting sufficient funds to enable a new set to bo purchased,
»ud also a new set of ropee for tho tower bells, with a useful surplus
in hand for niiy minor repairs which may be needed iu the Itelfry. The

handbells, which are a very musical ring by Barwell, were first used on
Saturday, Grandsiro Triples being rung.

LITTLE MTJINDEN.—Herts County Association.—On Sunday, April
st~ 360 Bob Doubles: W. Il. Lawrence 1—2, S. Game 3, Pte A. Smith,
A.S.C., 4, F. Williams (conductor) 5. W. Williams 6.—On April 29th,
for evening service, 720 Oxford Bob Minor: ,T. J. Pratt. R.G.A., 1, N.
"simore 2, F. Williams 3, B. Patmore.4, A. Lawrenco 5 W. H. Law-
TJ"c¢f (conductor) 6.—On May 13th, for evening service, 120 Grandsire
Doubles. Also 240 Bob Minor: W. Greenaway 1, F. Williams 2, S.
<nme 3. B. Patmore 4, N. Patmore 5 W. H. Lawrence (conductor) G
—On May 27tli. for evening service, three leads of Oxford Treble Bob:

,» H. Lawrence 1—2, S. Game 3, B. Patmore 4, N. Patmore 5. Pte 12
A. Overall (Buffs) 6.
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CHURCH BELLS SINGLY OR
IN RINGS.

Bell Frames in Cast Iron, Steel
and Oak.

Bells tuned on the latest im-
proved principles initiated by
the late Ganon Simpson.

CfISTIIE GREEN,
-~ BRISTOlj. -



JAMES BARWELL,
Church S3ell H‘ounders

Church Bell Hangers,

GREAT HAMPTON STREET,
BIRMINGHAM

Towers and Campaniles Inspected and
Estimates Furnished tc cover every
Expense.

S&usical Handbells, in any size and number,
for Tune or Change-ringing, in Guaranteed

Quality.
The Jasper 5nowdon Series.
ROPIii-SIGHT. Is. 6d.; sixth ed. 150 pages; treats Plain Bob, com

moncing oa three bells.

GRANDSIRE. 2s. 8d.; second ed.; 284 pages;
bells; complete with the Thompson Charts, etc., etc.

STANDARD METHODS 6th Edition Now Ready, 2s. 6d.

STEDMAN. 2s. 6d.; 275 pages, by the Rev. C. D. P. Davies, M.A,,
with an appendix by Sir Arthur Heywood, Bart., etc., etc.

TREBLE BOB. Part I. Is. 6d.; second ed.; with appendix;
closely printed pages. Part Il., suited for Conductors only;
very scarce; 2s. ljd.; 23fi pages.

DOUBLE NORWICH O. B. Major. At present out of print.
SURPRISE PEALS. Cambridge, Superlative and London; compiling.
All post free, on receipt of postal order, from

Mrs. LAURA SNOWDON, Gartmel, Lancashire.

ALFRED BOWELL,

CHURCH BELL FOUNDER,
ip s W i

JOHN oM Ilifl & SUNS

Midland Clock Works,

DERBY q

Telegraphic Adtlrcss-
* Clocks, Derby.”
No. 569

c h

v O

Tel. pVv> _

MAKERS OF CLOCKS AND

- tu Il Iy CHIMES for S. Paul's Cathedral
e *\ 1 Beverley Minster, Selby AW>ey, Truro
NN Cathedral, Thurles Cathedral, Trinity College, earn-

Belfast Assembly Hall, Magdalen College, Oxford,
and many others to Lord Orimthorp?'s designs. = In 1897,
' writing to the Vicar of Minchinhampton, Lord Gnmthorpe said  “ Smith

of will clock you In the best way and as near wternity as possible.”

er”~bridge,
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“The World's Best Bellropes”
PROVED IN THE RINGING OF THE
WORLD'S RECORD PEAL.

THE SAME EXCELLENT QUALITY AS
BEFORE THE WAR, AND PRICES VERY
LITTLB HIGHER.

Splicing and Repairs
JOHN PRITCHARD,

Price List
of tbs Swan Street,
Sole Maker. LOUGHBOROUGH.

Established over a HUNDRED YBARS.

Unigue for Presentation.

An Inkstand in the design of aWell-shaped Bell

This charming model in Solid Hall Marked Silver
will make a most appropriate and useful Gift.

It can be supplied in the following sizes:—

om0 A RE b B

Monogram or Inscriptions Engraved at Moderate Charges.

Goldsmith and

rtm W T 3 P ‘D
J e vU iU Jjilld tv,
W 0 K I XT6

(MAKER OF THE RINGERS BADGE))

THOMAS POBLE & SON, Church Bell-
Hangers, TAUNTON.—Bells Hung on the
most approved principles Old Bells Re-cast,
New Bells supplied, Ropes of the best make.
Ellacombe’s Chiming Apparatus fixed, Hand-
bells in sets, Chromatic or Diatonic.

BADGE OF THE CRAFT
A Beautifully Executed

RINGERS' PENDANT

in Gold, Silver or Bronze.
Specially Suitable for Gifts.
Prices, Gold (9 carat) 23/ Silver /-
Bronze 2/9 (post free).

J. COMBER, Goldsmith and Jeweller,

171 wokino. W O K I N G
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